CRYSTAL LAKE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION
WEDNESDAY, OCTOBER 1, 2014
HELD AT THE CRYSTAL LAKE CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS

The meeting was called to order by Chairman Haydéh30 p.m. On roll call, members Batastini,
Esposito, Gavle, Jouron, Skluzacek, and Hayden present. Members Goss and Greenman were
absent.

Elizabeth Maxwell, Planner, was present from Staff.

Mr. Hayden asked those in attendance to rise téhgai?ledge of Allegiance. He led those in attendan
in the Pledge.

Mr. Hayden stated that this meeting was being teéenow as well as recorded for future playback on
the City’s cable station.

APPROVE MINUTES OF THE SEPTEMBER 17, 2014 PLANNING AND ZONING
COMMISSION MEETING

Mr. Jouron moved to approve the minutes from th&&weber 17, 2014 Planning and Zoning
Commission meeting as presented. Mr. Gavle secbtiemotion. On roll call, members Esposito,
Gavle, Jouron, Skluzacek, and Hayden voted aye.Bibastini abstained. Motion passed.

2014-41 DIMOPQOULOS - 103 Sunnyside Ave: PUBLIC HEARING

Variation from Article 3-200, 7-2008B (iii) and 7-8B 4 from the minimum front yard setback
requirements to allow a 40-foot encroachment af\eecfront porch that will be added to the
existing nonconforming principal structure.

Mr. Hayden stated that the sign had been postedsaltl the surrounding property owners were ndtifie
and the Certificate of Publication was in the fiMr. Hayden waived the reading of the legal notice
without objection.

Mr. Skluzacek recused himself from the discussiiothis petition. He left the Council Chambers.
Carbie Dimopoulos, owner, and William Reece, aathijtwere present to represent the petition. Ms.
Dimopoulos said the home was purchased last Octotzethey would like to put on a second story and

add a front porch. She said the porch additiamhat requires a variation.

There was no one in the public who wished to contraarthis petition. The public portion was closed
at this time.

Mr. Gavle asked if the one foot addition to thegbois the only issue. Ms. Dimopoulos said yes. Mr



PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION
OCTOBER 1, 2014
PAGE 2

Gavle said he has no problem with the request. bdesBatastini, Esposito, Jouron and Hayden
agreed. Mr. Hayden added that this is a good giroje

Mr. Batastini asked if the petitioner had any caonsewith the recommended conditions in the staff
report. Mr. Reece said no. Mr. Batastini said tleiquests meets the standards listed in the I8tadft.
This will enhance the area.

Mr. Batastini moved to approve the Variation fromtiéle 3-200, 7-200B (iii) and 7-300B 4 from the
minimum front yard setback requirements to allo#0afoot encroachment of a covered front porch that
will be added to the existing nonconforming priraiptructure at 103 Sunnyside Avenue with the
following conditions:

1. Approved plans, reflecting staff and advisorafgbrecommendations, as approved by the City
Council:

A. Application (Dimopoulos, received 09/05/14)

B. Survey (Luco Construction Company, dated 09/2,7véceived 09/05/14)

C. Building Renovation and Addition (Reece Architecated 08/22/14, received 09/12/14)

2. The variation from Article 3-200, 7-200B (iiind 7-300B 4 from the minimum front yard setback
requirement to allow a 40-foot encroachment ofwa oevered front porch is hereby granted.

3. The addition to the property may not increasesticroachment of the front yard setback by maue th
1-foot, totaling in a maximum encroachment of 4ét fe

4. Style, colors and materials shall be complenrgritathe principal structure.

5. The petitioner shall address all of the reviemments and requirements of the Community
Development Department, Public Works Departmerd,fare Rescue Department

Mr. Esposito seconded the motion. On roll callmmbers Batastini, Esposito, Gavle, Jouron and
Hayden voted aye. Mr. Skluzacek did not vote. iMopassed.

Mr. Skluzacek returned to the Commission at thseti

2014-42 KARR-SHOEVLIN — 153 Greenfield Ave— PUBLIC HEARING

Variation from Article 3-200, 7-200B (iii) and 7-8B 4 from the minimum front yard setback
requirements to allow a 12-foot encroachment ebatfporch that will be added to the existing
nonconforming principal structure.

Mr. Hayden stated that the sign had been postedsaltl the surrounding property owners were ndtifie
and the Certificate of Publication was in the fiMr. Hayden waived the reading of the legal notice
without objection.



PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION
OCTOBER 1, 2014
PAGE 3

Tim Shoevlin, contractor, and John Karr, owner,eyatesent to represent the petition. Mr. Shoevlin
said they are requesting the variation for an 8-ftsxk to be placed on the front of the home. €hily,
there is no sidewalk leading to the front door #nsl deck will make it easier for everyone to erted
exit the home. Also most of the homes in the &iaee front porches.

Mr. Hayden asked if there were any concerns wighcttinditions listed in the staff report. Mr. Shiaev
said no. He said there will be new cedar sidinggouthe home and the deck will be made of cedar.

David Witsiepe, 148 East End, said he lives diyeladhind this property and is very happy with the
improvements that have been made so far. It hpsowed the neighborhood. He added that all of the
neighbors are in favor of the variation.

There was no one else in the public who wisheatoroent on this petition. The public portion was
closed at this time.

Mr. Batastini said he supports this project. Thememany homes in that neighborhood that have fron
porches and this will fit in well. He said therstiards listed in the staff report have been mez@alty
the character of the area.

Mr. Esposito said this is a very nice makeover.. 8kluzacek said the house will look better. Mr.
Gavle and Mr. Jouron agreed. Mr. Hayden saidishasnice addition.

Mr. Batastini moved to approve the Variation fromtiéle 3-200, 7-200B (iii) and 7-300B 4 from the
minimum front yard setback requirements to alloh2aoot encroachment of a new front porch that will
be added to the existing nonconforming principalctire for 153 Greenfield Avenue with the

following conditions:

1. Approved plans, reflecting staff and advisorafgbrecommendations, as approved by the City
Council:

A. Application (Karr-Shoevlin, received 09/12/14)

B. Survey (Shoevlin, received 09/12/14)

C. Proposed deck plan (Shoevlin, received 09/12/14)

D. Setback measurements drawing (City staff, rexceB0/12/14)

2. The variation from the minimum front yard setbesquirement to allow a 12-foot encroachment of a
new front porch is hereby granted.

3. The size of the front porch cannot be expandduk future, thereby limiting further encroachmaint
the front yard setback.

4. Style, colors and materials shall be complenrgritathe principal structure.



PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION
OCTOBER 1, 2014
PAGE 4

5. The petitioner shall address all of the reviemmments and requirements of the Community
Development Department, Public Works Departmerd,fdre Rescue Department.

Mr. Jouron seconded the motion. On roll call nadimbers voted aye. Motion passed.
2014-40 McNEIL-BOYER - 171 S. Main St— PUBLIC HEARING

Rezoning from M-L Manufacturing Limited to B-4 Dotawn Commercial and a Special Use Permit to
allow a single-family attached first floor residihtuse in the B-4 zoning district

Mr. Hayden stated that the sign had been postedsaltl the surrounding property owners were ndtifie
and the Certificate of Publication was in the fiMr. Hayden waived the reading of the legal notice
without objection.

Karlen Covey, attorney, Neil and Carmen Boyer, aswneere present to represent the petition. Mr.
Boyer said they want to restore the building. Thaye two successful home-based businesses they run
from their current home. They would like to moteit businesses and residence to this buildingge Th
residence would be a loft-style home for them. Bbyer added that the Main Street location would
have good visibility for their businesses.

Mr. Boyer said there are approximately 40% residéand 60% business in the area. This property is
in the TIF District — Crystal Lake Avenue and M&8treet. He added that the building was recently
vandalized. First they want to restore the extesfdhe building including the roof before wintand

then concentrate on the interior renovations. Béyer said with their efforts in restoring the loling, it
will create a better welcoming to the downtown area

Mrs. Boyer said they have lived and worked outheirthome in Algonquin for 18 years. Now they are
empty nesters and they want to down size buthstite their businesses within their home. She added
that there are three homes that might be in ditfrcu possibly foreclosure - just to the north loit
building.

Mr. Covey said the property was annexed and zomell&nufacturing Limited which does not allow
any residential use even through a Special UseiPeiihis property is approximately 100 yards from
the “B-4” zoning district across Main Street. Hadsthis will allow them to have a residence in tear
of the building which will not be visible from Mai@treet. This is a good opportunity. Mr. Coveylsa
this building would be retail and a home. He adilted the building is only one story and “B-4” alle
for residential on the second floor.

Mr. Hayden asked if there were any concerns wighcttinditions listed in the staff report. Mr. Covey
said no.



PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION
OCTOBER 1, 2014
PAGE 5

Mrs. Boyer showed the possible floor plan for tadding. Mr. Covey said this is in the TIF distrand
they were told that that would allow for mixed uses

Marshall Kloepfer, 163 S. Main Street, said he oand lives at 163 N. Main Street and plans on
staying there. He completely supports the requeist.Kloepfer said the City should be excited kean
up and renovate the property. He added that ttyen@eds to be supportive of any effort made to
improve the TIF area. Mr. Kloepfer asked to spethhe Commission after this petition is concluded.

There was no one else in the public who wisheatoraent on this petition. The public portion was
closed at this time.

Mr. Jouron asked where the offices and entrancesgdaae located in the building. Mr. Boyer showed
the locations on the possible floor plan. Mr. Haydaid one of the conditions is to provide a more
detailed set of plans including the floor plan. sMBoyer said they don’t currently own the building
Mr. Boyer said if this is approved they will quighput together plans so the building can be pretect
for the winter and then work on the floor plan ghahs for the interior.

Mr. Gavle asked if this type of request common.. Maxwell said there are many home-based
businesses in the City. This is slightly differegttaking a commercial building and put a livingase
in it. She added that the petitioner will neednteet the building code requirements, but that shoat
be an issue. Mr. Boyer said this is a classic $3tfucture. They will be adding walkways, canspie
etc. This building has a lot of potential andmsque. Mrs. Boyer said they looked at several progs,
but they wanted to be close to a downtown areaefisas the commuter train.

Mr. Skluzacek said he has no problem with the remprbut is on the fence regarding the residential.
He asked about the garage door in the rear. MyeBsaid they thought they would keep the door
opening and replace it with a glass door. Mr. 8kbek asked if all of the parking would be in tharr
of the building. Mr. Boyer said yes and there \Ww#l sufficient parking. He added that this isagreat
location for retail and there is only one main ante to the building. Mr. Skluzacek said he is
concerned with residential in the building.

Mr. Esposito said he likes the idea and thereesiglences to the north of this property. He addat
this would be spot zoning, but does like the charigehe building. Mr. Esposito asked if there gou
be parking in the front of the building. Ms. MaxXi&aid there is a required 20 foot setback from a
roadway. Mr. Covey said they are not exactly sulnere the right of way is located. Mrs. Boyer said
she doesn’t see a problem with the parking beirtberrear. Most suburban offices have parkingpen t
rear and the people have to walk to the front terethe building.

Mr. Esposito asked about the number of parkingepé#tat would be used during the day. Mr. Boyer
said not many would be used. There would not beyrpaople working in the other office areas.

Mr. Batastini said this is different and he is nbjectionable to the use.



PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION
OCTOBER 1, 2014
PAGE 6

Mr. Hayden said recently there was something irdtihentown area regarding business and residential
use in a building. Ms. Maxwell said there was@uest for residential on the first floor and busmse
uses on the second floor which was approved by €buklir. Hayden said the petitioners may have to
sprinkler the building. Ms. Maxwell said that wdlle determined by the Fire Rescue Department.

Mr. Hayden asked about the office areas. Mr. Bega their businesses do require storing somesitem
for future use and/or selling at estate salesfueter Neither of them wants to have a retail bussndt
requires a lot of time and employees. Mrs. Bowyadl ghey like their businesses the way they are.now
Mr. Hayden asked staff if they foresee any probietie future with parking. Ms. Maxwell said any
future use of the building is reviewed for parkmeguirements and if a variation is needed the new
business owner will need to request it. The parkeguirements for this request are met.

Mr. Hayden asked about signage. Mr. Boyer saig Wik have a sign in the front yard. It will bew
profile and there won't be any signage on the lgd Mrs. Boyer said their businesses are open by
appointment.

Mr. Skluzacek asked if the Special Use Permit mrayed, will it go with the property or if the
petitioners leave will it be void. Ms. Maxwell dgmed that variations go with the property but Sale
Use Permits are for that specific user only. Wtaer were to come with a similar request, theyidou
need to go through the process again.

Mr. Hayden asked if Mr. Kloepfer wanted to make dwifglitional comments at this time. Mr. Kloepfer
said his property was forced annexed into the &ity made part of the TIF district. At that timéT]
districts were beneficial. Since that time the ke&for property has dropped considerably. He was
promised many upgrades to the area such as walkstiget lights. Nothing has happened and feels th
City is not doing their job with this district. Hmid all of the tax dollars have been divertedtteer

areas and the general fund and not put back irgatka.

Mr. Hayden thanked Mr. Kloepfer for his commentsd atated that he would not get into a discussion at
this time with him. He added that Mr. Kloepfer aoents could not be further from the truth. Mr.
Kloepfer said the funds have been misused and lhéevpursuing this further than with the boards.

Mr. Esposito moved to approve the Rezoning from NWanufacturing Limited to B-4 Downtown
Commercial and a Special Use Permit to allow aletfgmily attached first floor residential use hetB-4
zoning district for 171 S. Main Street with theléoling conditions:

1. Approved plans, reflecting staff and advisorafgbrecommendations, as approved by the City
Council:

A. Application (Boyer, received 09/11/14)

B. Application Packet Narrative (Boyer, received1@14)



PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION
OCTOBER 1, 2014
PAGE 7

2. The petitioner shall submit a complete set ading permit plans for any interior alterationsdan
required to meet all life-safety codes for all coenomal, office and residential uses.

3. All parking areas shall be on a paved surfatk atileast 1 enclosed space for the residencéhnd
additional striped spaces.

4. The petitioner shall address all of the reviemmments and requirements of the Community
Development and Fire Rescue Departments.

Mr. Jouron seconded the motion. On roll callnadimbers voted aye. Motion passed.

REPORT FROM PLANNING

Ms. Maxwell reviewed the items for the next meetomgOctober 15, 2014.

COMMENTS FROM THE COMMISSION
There were no comments from the Commissioners.

The meeting was adjourned at 8:40 p.m.



